1 NUTES
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PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON
April 26, 2006
THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII, CONVENED A PUBLIC
HEARING ON WEDNESDAY, APRIL 26, 2006, AT 6:31 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL
CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING, WAILUKU, HAWAII, WITH CHAIR G. RIKI
HOKAMA PRESIDING, FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING TESTIMONY ON THE
PROPOSED REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2006 TO JUNE 30, 2007.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS JO ANNE JOHNSON, DAIN P. KANE,
DENNIS A. MATEO, MICHAEL J. MOLINA, JOSEPH
PONTANILLA, CHARMAINE TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR
ROBERT CARROLL, AND CHAIR G. RIKI HOKAMA.
EXCUSED: COUNCILMEMBER MICHELLE ANDERSON.
There were approximately 10 members of the public in attendance.
(Councilmember Anderson was not present when the roll was taken; however, she
arrived at 6:33 p.m.)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Public Hearing held by the Council of the County of Maui shall come
to order. This is the twenty-sixth of April, 2006. Mr. Clerk, has notice been given for
this public hearing this evening?
COUNTY CLERK ROY T. HIRAGA: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Notice on Real Property Tax
Rates for the County of Maui for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007 was
published in the April 15 and April 19 issues of The Maui News.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. This evening we have Members Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla and Tavares. Ms. Anderson is excused. Mr. Clerk, are
there any other housekeeping matters before we move to testimony.
COUNTY CLERK: There's none, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
At this time, the Council will be happy to take testimony on the range of rates for real
property regarding land and building in the following categories: Improved
Residential, the ranges for land and building are $3.00 to $15.00.
(Councilmember Anderson arrived at the public hearing at 6:33 p.m.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next category or classification is Apartment, the range is $3.00, $3.00 to
$15.00 for both land and building. Commercial classification, range is $3.00 to
$15.00 for land and building. Industrial classification, range for land and building
$3.00 to $15.00. What was the last one I left? Industrial. Thank you.
Let me just say it this way. industrial, Agriculture, Conservation, Hotel and Resort
are under $3.00 to $15.00 for both land and building. Time Share, land and building
is between $8.00 and $24.00. Unimproved Residential classification, land and
building or it should be just land, $3.00 to $15.00. Homeowners, land and building
$2.00 to $15.00 is the ranges, Members.
Stating that, we will be open for public testimony. For those of you who were able to
sign up prior to the convening of this public hearing, you will have three minutes to
give your testimony. We are using a lighting device to help you with your comments.
At the beginning of your comments, the Clerk will notify you with a green light. At the
two-minute thirty second mark, the yellow light will go on to indicate to you that you
have thirty seconds before the three-minute mark. At the three-minute mark, you will
end your sentence and if you have additional comments to give, the Chair will provide
you with an opportunity after all others who have signed up prior to the start of this
meeting have provided their testimony.
Stating that, Mr. Clerk, please call the first testifier.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chair, just to note, two individuals have signed up prior to the
convening of the meeting. The first one is Richard Ellis and he'll be followed by
Melissa Prince.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Again, all those testifying please state your name for the
record and if you do represent an organization, we would ask that you please share
that information also.

TESTIMONY
MR. RICHARD ELLIS:
Distinguished Councilmembers, ladies and gentlemen, good evening. I am Richard
Ellis.
I appeared here last week broken sessions and I appreciate the opportunity to come
back tonight and maybe put it in a little better form and maybe I can convince some
of you people of what I'm saying is true. I am now here to share with you, and before
I get into that I'd like to tell you a little bit about myself.
I retired from Pacific Telephone in 1982 after 35 years in the Controller and Treasury
Departments. I was a prop—have been a property owner, real property owner for fifty
years. I was a landlord for 31 years and during that in, interim of being a landlord, I
served as a president of three different homeowner associations for three different
condominium complexes.
I have completed two courses in the study of real property taxes. And in that study of
those courses there's two things that stand out in my mind. One of them is that real
property tax is on the property and not on who owns it or how it is used. Its the
property. And secondly, there should be equal treatment, taxation for all property
owners.
I have been a time share owner in the Maui Sunset for 25 years. Maui Sunset was
originally built as an apartment complex, 225 units. In the late seventies and early
eighties, they converted about 40 of those to time share units and I got in at that time.
These were originally built as condominium apartments. They are used that way
today.
When I'm on Maui and we've been here every year except once since we've
purchased. In fact, we were here four years before we purchased. My routine is to
get up in the morning, put on a pot of coffee and get the newspaper and find out
what's happened on Maui and what's about to happen on Maui.
On June 21 of last year, when I opened the paper, I saw this article, "Higher rates for
time shares considered". And that sort of got my attention. And in reading through
that there was that particular article and several other articles following that were
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some comments that were made and these supposedly came out of the Office of the

Mayor. And I would like to just share with you some of those. At the time these
articles appeared, the Mayor proposed a time share at $16.00. And some of the-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ellis, since you're reading that, I would ask, would you like to return
and have another three minutes?
MR. ELLIS: I would, please. Yes, I would.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will be happy to call you back.
MR, ELLIS: Can I come at the end?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
MR. ELLIS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Next speaker is Melissa Prince.
MS. MELISSA PRINCE:
Good evening, my name is Melissa Prince and I am here to testify in favor of
COMET's proposal for property tax reform in Maui County.
COMET stands for the "Committee for More Equitable Taxation". It was started in
the 1980s by a group of Kuau, Maui residents who started seeing a spike in their
property tax assessments at that time. COMET was instrumental in getting the
County's homeowner exemption and circuit breaker enacted. However, while those
programs are helpful, COMET with Bill Tavares and Tony Fisher are now saying that
the homeowners' exemption and circuit breaker are not tax reform.
Currently, there are two factors that go into calculating a property owner's tax bill.
Number one, the rate charged and two, the property's assessed value. The County
mixes everyone's assessment in a neighborhood so if, for example, a home sells for
over a million dollars, the other homes in that neighborhood also have their property
valuations increased, even if they are longtime residents who do not plan to sell and
are living on a fixed income.
Because the County's assessment lags behind the actual sale price of the property,
land speculators can come in and flip real estate, make a big profit, then get out
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before the updated assessment catches up to them. Meanwhile, when it does catch
up to the longtime homeowner, their property tax bill can skyrocket out of sight.
In my mother's case, her mortgage payments leaped last December from six, by
$66.00 a month. Since her income didn't increase that much that meant she had to
cut back on food items to make up for it. And I'm sure there are other residents
experiencing the same problem.
The current County system also is very hard on long term tenants. Contrary to what
some have said, there are landlords offering long term rentals who are trying to keep
their rent affordable. But the homeowners exemption and circuit breaker programs
do not apply to second homes. So when the landlord's property tax on that rental
goes up, the landlord can only absorb that increase for so long before he or she must
pass that cost on to the tenant. That could mean a sudden jump in the rent of a
hundred dollars or more a month. Some landlords may even be forced to sell their
long term rental property, and if they do, the community loses one more affordable
rental unit from the market. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Prince. Members, any questions to Ms. Prince
regarding her testimony this evening? Ms. Ander, uh, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Melissa, has, you stated that your mother's real
property tax or her mortgage payment went up $66.00 a month. Is she aware of the
circuit breaker?
MS. PRINCE: Ah, yes, excuse me. In fact, I did apply for the circuit breaker for her before
the December deadline and we received a letter from Kalbert Young from the, the
Finance Department but it, it was just a preliminary letter, didn't say any details of
how it was going to help her. But I know that it will be used as a credit for future tax
bill. But it's very, it's kind of onerous, I mean, that is to get the circuit breaker going.
You have to apply for it every year. You already have to have an exemption, which
she does. But I've talked to some friends of mine that are Maui residents. I said,
"Hey, does your mom have this exemption and the circuit breaker'?" They go, "No,
what's that?" You know, they don't understand it.
And when I went into the property tax department at the Maui Mall, there was a long
line of people waiting to get to the DMV and I looked in that container where they
have those plexi-glass forms and I thought well maybe the circuit breaker application
will be there so I don't have to go through the maze to get to the property tax
department. But there was none there. It was all DMV stuff. And same with the
exemption, I, you know, that was done when my father was living and I don't really
know how to do that either. So, it's, it's burdensome.
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You know, I was talking to my sister, she's a nurse. She says, "You know, a lot of
people are working two or three jobs to make ends meet here on Maui. They do not
have time to go out and protest." So if, you know, they can't go get these paper
works done and, you know, then they're going to have to fill one more piece of
paperwork out every year to get this exemption or this help. And then, then it's not, it
doesn't come in help that year, it's like the year later. And I just think it's very hard for
people.
In today's Maui News, Tony Fisher wrote a letter to the editor and he said out of
22,000 homeowners only a thousand people have applied for the circuit breaker.
And there are estimates that maybe five to ten thousand more people are eligible.
What does that tell you? We, the people don't have time to be running around going
and doing that kind of paperwork. You know, it's very hard.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I really appreciate your input and I will try to
find out. Is your mother also computer literate where she can get online or would you
have to be the one?
MS. PRINCE: This, this is, it's embarrassing to say, well my mom is in her eighties. She
doesn't know anything about computers. I do, but I had to cancel my Internet
connection, to be honest, cause we ran out of money. We just don't have it and
that's why I go to the library. I maybe go to a coffee shop once in a while and check
my email. But it's, it's not that easy to get, you know, to the computer long enough to
do all that stuff on there. And so walking in directly is the only other way, really. It's
just very difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and maybe what we can do is, you know, see if more
of those forms or at least access to them can be made available so there's a, a better
access. I really thank you so much for your testimony.
MS. PRINCE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for Ms. Prince, Members? Thank you very much for
your testimony this evening.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, Ms. Prince was the last individual to sign up to testify
tonight. I believe Mr. Ellis wants to return to complete his testimony.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, thank you. Mr. Ellis, if you would please return and you have an
additional three minutes to share your thoughts with us.
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MR. RICHARD ELLIS (concluding his testimony):
Thank you. In these articles were several, in these articles were several statements
that supposedly came from the Mayor's Office and one of them said that, and this
was in support of a higher rate of taxes for time share owners, say we pay only low
maintenance fees when we actually use the unit and that's not a true statement. We
do pay whether we use it or not and it says that time share owners make higher
profits than hotels. We are a nonprofit organization and I don't know how that study
could produce such kind of a report. We are managed by a Board of Directors who
serve at no pay. We do not have amenities that hotels have like maid service, room
service. We do for ourselves just as you folks do for yourselves.
According to ARDA 2004, time share owners stay two-tenths of a day longer than
hotel guests, about two and a half hours. And there was a comment about how the
amount of time we spent in, over what regular visitors do and that we make an impact
on the sewers and roadways and so forth.
And all the, most of the time share people that I know rent a car over here and we
pay $3.00 a day and my rate last year was $81.00 for using that car. And it appears
to me that this impact statement is just a little bit of nitpicking to say that we're using
the parkways and the ocean, beaches and so forth, because we do pay a tax. And
none of these four statements have anything at all to do with real property taxes.
They're all superfluous. They're nothing to do with it.
And finally, the Council having been given this kind of information, passed a rate of
$14.00 and that is supposed to be a real property tax rate. And let me assure you, it
is not. If other units in that building have a rate of $3.50 as a fulltime resident there,
how can a tax rate of fourteen be tied in as real property tax? To me, I would call that
a potpourri tax. There's something in there that is not real property and based on
these other suggestions that we are like hotels and we don't pay room taxes, that
maybe the Council has loaded in a makeup tax from these room taxes and I don't
think that's fair.
If the assess, oh, if memory serves me correctly, the real property tax rate is
achieved by dividing the dollar requirements that you folks passed into the budget,
divide that by the total assessed value of the County and that gives you a real
property tax rate. Do I need to stop?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, you do, Mr. Ellis.
MR. ELLIS: I thought I could complete my testimony. It's not, not it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, the rules does not change whether we're in a public hearing or a
council meeting. The rules are the rules. Members, questions on Mr. Ellis'
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testimony? I believe we have received your, your, uh, documentation, Mr. Ellis
through the Budget Committee and at any future meeting including the Council's
meeting on the budget, testimony is always off, welcome to be received then you can
have additional opportunities to share your comments.
MR. ELLIS: May I just state there's a recommendation in the back of this book and I would
appreciate it if you all haven't seen it, you'd take a look at. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Ellis.
MR. ELLIS: God bless you and good work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your presence this evening, sir. Is there
anyone else wishing to provide comments regarding the range of tax rates for real
property for the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget year? Please make yourself known and the
Council will provide you with an opportunity to share your thoughts. Seeing none
forth, Mr. Clerk, any further announcements?
COUNTY CLERK: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Written testimony that our office has received has
been copied and duly distributed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members. With no objections, we shall accept written
testimony submitted for this evening's public hearing.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, so ordered.
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART OF
THE RECORD OF THIS PUBLIC HEARING:
1.
2.

American Resort Development Association; and
Mark S. Cosslett.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, there being no further request for testimony, this meeting will
be recessed, recessed until May 15 at 10:00 a.m. in the morning in this Council
Chambers. Any questions or announcements?
We do return back to the recessed Budget and Finance Committee decision making
at 8:30 p.m. chaired by Mr. Kane. Any other comments, Members? If not, enjoy the
break and we will see you back at 8:30 in the chambers. This meeting is hereby
recessed.
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THE COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING OF APRIL 26, 2006, WAS RECESSED BY THE
CHAIR AT 6:50 P.M.; AND WAS RECONVENED ON MAY 15, 2006, AT 10:02 A.M.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the reconvened public hearing. Today is the fifteenth of May,
2006 the Council of the County of Maui. The purpose of this public hearing is to fix
real property tax rates for the Fiscal Year 2007. Mr. Clerk, call the roll.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS MICHELLE ANDERSON, JO ANNE
JOHNSON, DAN P. KANE, DENNIS A. MATEO, MICHAEL J.
MOLINA, JOSEPH PONTANILLA, CHARMAINE TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR ROBERT CARROLL, AND CHAIR G. RIKI
HOKAMA.
EXCUSED: NONE.
There were approximately 10 members of the public in attendance.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, all nine Members are
present.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Clerk, has the proper notification been
completed for the meeting of this morning?
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, notice of this reconvened public hearing was
published in the May 4 and 8, 2006 issues of The Maui News.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Do we have requests for public testimony this
morning?
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, before the convening of today's public hearing,
three individuals submitted testimony forms requesting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Before we start, we would ask everyone to please turn
your cell phones either off or silent, please, as part of the decorum of these
chambers.
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When we announce your name for public testimony, please come forward to the
podium, state your name for the record. If you do represent an organization, we
would ask that you please share that information also. You have three minutes to
which to give your comments to the Council this morning.
When you begin, the green light at the podium will go on. At the two-minute thirty
second mark, a yellow light will go on to indicate you have thirty seconds left. And
then, at the three-minute mark, the red light will go on and you will finish your
sentence. If you need additional time, please make yourself known and the Chair will
allow you up to three additional minutes after all others have spoken.
Stating that, Mr. Clerk, please call our first testifier.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The first person to testify is Tony Fisher, followed by Bill D.
Tavares.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. TONY FISHER, COMET:
Whoops. Good morning. First of all, I'd like to say thank you for the opportunity to
testify this morning.
And my first comment deals with the idea of increasing the homeowner's exemption
from 200,000 to 300,000. 1 think that was an absolutely wonderful idea in that it
affects the lower income people more than anyone else. I got a call last week after it
was announced, from a lady who said, "It looks like I'm gonna be able to pay the
minimum tax as a result of this." And for a lady that only earns $830 a month on
social security, it was a big deal.
Secondly, I think the idea of reducing the homeowner's tax rate from 3.50 to 2.50 is
also a marvelous idea. Although that affects the person with a ten million dollar
house a great deal more than it does the person with a $300,000 house. It almost
has offset my increase in taxes this year. Not quite, but it's close. This is, however,
what I call tax diddling. It is not tax reform. And tax reform is what Maui County is in
desperate need of.
Thus, COMET, the Committee for More Equitable Taxation presents to this County
Council, per Article 14-1-1 of the County Charter, a request that this Council put this
charter amendment petition, charter amendment petition that's what the County
Charter calls it. You know what that spells, "CAP", charter amendment petition is a
"CAP" and that's what our amendment is all about. Put this on the November ballot.
According to the Charter, this is the way to get this charter amendment petition on the
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ballot. Happens to be the first of three, the other two requires to get either 7,000 or
15,000 signatures. We are prepared to do that, but we'd rather not. So the County
chart, the County Council has the opportunity to do this.
I just wanted to comment that I hope all of you have watched the six thirty-minute
television shows that Bill Tavares and I have run. They all include the general
information but each one of them deals with a separate and distinct subject. We
have filmed them all over the island and they will run continuously.
COMET has no feel, ill feelings toward the County Council except that sometimes it
feels like we are pushing a limp rope to get action. At a meeting we had a couple of
months ago, a councilmember sug--suggested, it's for the voters to decide. This
charter amendment petition has been reviewed by two different lawyers and found it
to be legal. So let's enact tax reform. I submit to the County Council today these,
this petition with a cover letter for all of you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Staff, will you assist Mr. Fisher, please.
Mr. Fisher, are you planning to return? Would you like three additional after all others
have spoken?
MR. FISHER: No, I'm at the end of this. I will, obviously, if anyone has a question or
whatever, but I am so enthusiastic this morning. I just am, you know, we finally
reached the point where we have the document completely cleared by lawyers, ready
for your decision making and then for us to proceed thereafter, if that's necessary.
But again, I am delighted and COMET is delighted frankly with all of the people on
this County Council. You have been cooperative and helpful and I think what you've
done with the property tax rates and the homeowner exemption is absolutely
wonderful. And unlike Kauai, we are not in a fistfight. We're in a discussion, we're in
dialogue. And I hope that this all turns out for the best. And I thank every one of you
for your help.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Any questions to Mr. Fisher on his testimony?
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Fisher, for being
here. The petition that you have in this document that you're presenting to the
Council, does it support the original proposal that COMET gave to the Council this
term?
MR. FISHER: Thank you, Councilmember Anderson. Yes, it does, that has a lot of other
things in it which are new which you will see. But the point of it is that we, in fact,
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have all of the original thing. A four percent cap, the re--the reassessment at the time
that a piece of property changes hands.
We had an enormous problem, by the way, that was in a meeting with
Councilmember Kane, which was we don't get the information soon enough to be
able to do that. So part of the new charter amendment is a statement in there that
when a per--when a piece of property changes hands, you must notify the County of
County, County tax people within seven days or it's a thousand dollar fine or thirty
days in jail. So there, the problem of not notifi--not being notified has been rectified
by other language that is in here.
We also added a piece in there which, I think you'll find interesting, which is, I got a
call a couple of weeks ago from a lady who said, "I bought my house in March. I
could not then take the homeowners exemption until the next year and I couldn't take
the circuit breaker until the next year". And that's just the way it is. So we put some
wording in here that says the homeowners exemption and the reassessment will
occur simultaneously and part of, one of the documents that must be submitted to the
County is the homeowners exemption certificate. So we hope that that will resolve
that issue which again is helpful to the, that new home buyer.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Fisher, I know you were out of town for a lot, a lot of
the budget work that we did and I just wanted to inform you that we were told by real
property tax that they are getting property sales transmitted or, or posted with the
Bureau of Conveyances and transmitted to them within two months.
MR. FISHER: That is, and I've heard up to six months. This, the way that the, the
document is written separately and distinctly of the re-conveyance process which
goes through Honolulu, they will get a direct approach from the, from the people who
have been involved in that. And we define the specific things that they must provide.
They have the information. They will have it within seven working days.
And since this is a County charter amendment, it absolutely and positively means
that this is the law of the land, this is the way it has to be. We very carefully went
through the entire County Charter, you know, this little book, and made sure we knew
what we were talking about and then checked that out with again two different
attorneys. So we feel that we have crossed the "t's" and dotted the "i's".
If you'll look on the very last page, you'll find five names on there. The County
Charter says that Corporation Counsel may change this as long as three of those five
people agree on whatever changes. So if Corporation Counsel comes up and says,
"I'm sorry, Mr. COMET, but this won't work because you need to change this from
this to this", we then, the five of us, can, can vote on that and we will make that part
of our petition procedure, if that is necessary, that says that we are acting as a
representative government, a representative of this instead of being a pure
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democracy and work that all out. We think that we've covered it. We tried to cross
the "t's" and dot the "i's".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Fisher. Other questions for the testifier?
If not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Clerk, call the next testifier.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Bill T. Tavares, followed by Melissa B. Prince.
MR. BILL D. TAVARES, COMET:
Do I wait for the green light? Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anytime you want to start, Mr. Tavares.
MR. TAVARES: All right. Good morning, I am Bill Tavares, Chairman of COMET, the
Committee for More Equitable Taxation established in 1988 and a resident of Kuau
for nearly 85 years. In the year 2010, our family will have been there a hundred
years. It is my hope and intention that my children and their children and their
children will be there another hundred years.
Now it looks like Mayor Harry Kim has done it again. Let me read excerpts from this
article in The Honolulu Advertiser issue of May 11, 06. This is from The Honolulu
Advertiser:
Alarmed at the recent spike in rents and the shrinking pool of affordable
rentals, Big Island Mayor Harry Kim is proposing a cut in property tax rates for
landlords and tax incentives for affordable rentals.
Kim wants the Hawaii Council to reduce tax rates for most types of property
owners, with most of the steepest reductions of 11 percent to 18 percent
aimed at the apartment, residential and agricultural classifications that cover
rental properties.
No rate reduction is planned for owner-occupants because tax relief was
approved for them last year, according to Kim's budget.
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Now County Finance Director William Takaba had said, said that the
administration is drafting a proposal that would allow landlords with affordable
rentals to be taxed on those rentals at the lowest rate, currently reserved for
owner-occupants.
Rents are going up overall, but we don't want property taxes to be the reason
why increases are made to rents.
Now, Mayor Harry Kim of the Big Island had already initiated and approved a tax cap
of three percent but only for homeowners. Thus, he is now providing tax relief for
home, for renters.
The COMET proposal has already provided tax relief for all categories. This Council
has been wrestling for years with a critically serious problem of the lack of affordable
housing for thousands of Maui's residents. COMET's proposed property tax refund
four percent cap on assessments would see an immediate impact in the availability of
reasonable rent levels for our citizens as landlords would not be required to pass
huge tax increases to their tenants as they now do.
COMET appreciates everything you have proposed, as Tony has already said, but
we cannot understand why this Council does not consider COMET's proposal for true
property tax reform with its lasting multiple benefits to all property owners and
renters. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Tavares, if you have additional comment, would you like
to return?
MR. TAVARES: No, I have said what I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Tavares. Members, any questions to
Mr. Tavares on his testimony this morning? If not, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Tavares, may you, uh, can you return, please?
MR. TAVARES: I can return, yes, my legs are still in pretty good shape. Yeah, let's go.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Mr. Tavares. Thanks for bringing that information to
us this morning. Were you able to do any further research, call anybody in Kauai on
that?
MR. TAVARES: No, this is Hawaii, Harry Kim. Harry.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean Big Island.
MR. TAVARES: No, we, we haven't. I haven't called anybody yet. Too engrossed in what
we're doing here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right, I'm just wondering how they established or
whether-MR. TAVARES: I don't know and I don't know when final action. If you want to, you want
this article?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
MR. TAVARES: Here, I'll take it over to you now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Appreciate that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any further questions for our testifier, Mr. Tavares. If not, thank
you very much for your presence this morning.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Melissa D. Prince.
MS. MELISSA D. PRINCE:
Good morning, my name is Melissa Prince. This is my testimony. Recently in two
different news articles myths about property taxes have been circulated.
The first was an article on May 12, 2006 in The Maui News where a reporter criticized
COMET's proposal for property tax reform saying that new home buyers would be
unfairly taxed higher than the long time homeowner that had been in the
neighborhood for some time. This is a myth.
New home buyers like having a budget so they can anticipate what their monthly
mortgage payments are going to be. COMET's proposal limits an assessment rising
more than four percent a year. Since the assessment times the rate equals the
property tax bill, a new homeowner could be guaranteed a more stable, predictable
bill and not be shocked with a sudden jump in their monthly mortgage payment due
to the rapid valuation of homes in their area.
The second myth I've seen is from a realtor writing in The Maui Weekly, May 11,
2006, saying that property taxes here on Maui are relatively cheap compared to the
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mainland. That belief is also a myth. Property taxes in all states on the mainland are
used to pay for their public school systems. Whereas here in Hawaii, public
education is paid for by the state's general excise tax and income taxes.
These two taxes are already a great burden on residents. The County property taxes
shouldn't have to be as high as the ones on the mainland. If property tax reform in
Maui County doesn't take place, it is likely that there will be fewer and fewer
affordable rentals for long term tenants as second homes and apartments are not
shielded by the homeowners exemption and circuit breaker.
Maui is already experiencing a shortage of labor especially at the lower end of the
pay scale. I think this can be attributed to the lack of affordable rentals. This
shortage of workers has crept into the middle income sector as well, where there are
now shortages of police, nurses and teachers, for example. If this trend continues, I
can only see a crisis coming in the future.
Please support COMET's proposal for property tax reform. COMET stands for the
Committee for More Equitable Taxation. If taxes are more equitable, then it will be a
win-win situation for everyone. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Prince. Members, any questions for Ms. Prince on her
testimony this morning? Having none, thank you very much for your testimony.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman that concludes the testimony of individuals who
submitted testimony forms before the convening of today's public hearing. Shall we
proceed with those individuals who submitted testimony forms after the convening of
the public hearing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: We have one person who has signed up to testify following the
convening of today's meeting. Calling Lucienne deNaie.

MS. LUCIENNE deNAIE:
Thank you. My name is Lucienne deNaie. I'm here testifying on my own behalf as a
property owner and homeowner. Greetings to you all and thank you for hearing
about this important matter.
I've been following the COMET proposal for many years because I grew up in
California and California does have a, a similar law to this. It was perhaps not as well
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thought out and crafted, but it did allow my mom when she became a, a sole
supporter of her livelihood at age 65 to hold on to her house. And if it hadn't of been
for the Proposition 13 limiting the amount of the taxes went up, my mom would have
been homeless. I would have had to take her in cause she just couldn't have
afforded the valuation that the properties around her. She had a modest house in
what became a resort community in Southern California, and all of a sudden her little
house she paid $13,000 for was worth nearly a $100,000 and the taxes were going to
reflect that. So I've personally experienced this.
What I hear from all of my neighbors, my taxes were, my assessment doubled this
year. It's gone up 10 percent a year for all the twenty years that I've lived in my, my
home. And this year it doubled, not 10 percent, it doubled. My neighbor's doubled,
everyone around us doubled. Why? We've all lived there 20 to 30 years, but some
wealthy people bought land adjacent to us, paid a very high price for it. They're in
the process of selling it for double what they paid for it two years after they bought it.
We need something to happen here. We really need your kokua here.
I sat at the Hana, at the East Maui Taro Festival with a little table saying "help plan
the future" as a member of the General Plan Advisory Committee. I had pieces of
paper and said give us your comments--Leslie Bruce and I representing East Maui
District. And all people wanted to talk about was what are we going to do about
taxes, we old time residents.
Eddie Pu and his wife were afraid of being taxed off their land. We need to consider
a proposal like COMET is suggesting. Maybe it needs to be tweaked. Maybe we
need to do the numbers and have some feedback back from our property tax division
on what will be plausible but it's not just enough to tweak with the rates. Let me tell
you tweaking with the rates doesn't help me out much.
My taxes go up like seven, eight, nine hundred dollars depending whether you lower
the rate to, to one version or another or give a more generous exemption, whereby, if
we just limited the amount that it would go up each year, my taxes would only raise a
few hundred dollars per year. That's manageable, but what we have now of having
my taxes virtually double is not acceptable to most of us who are long time residents
and really don't want to leave our properties. We don't want to be taxed out of our
properties. So please consider this in your deliberations. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, questions for Ms. deNaie on her testimony this
morning? My one question to you. So you got your tax bill and your tax bill, not the
tax assessment?
MS. deNAIE: Tax assessment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your tax bill has gone up a hundred percent.
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MS. deNAIE: No, I'm figuring if it, if it's the current rate, yeah, my assessment has gone up
a hundred percent and then when you do the deduction which, you know, it's a higher
deduction this time. But still, because it doubled, the deduction only went up about
$60,000 whereas the, the rate, you know, doubled. So when you, when you do the
math, I, I don't know if we want to bore you with the figures, but what I would owe if, if
I paid under your, you know, $2.50 per thousand evaluation [sic/ would be about
$1,800 and my current taxes are about $1,100. So that's a big jump if, if, if it wasn't
at the, excuse me. That's, that's if it was at the two, $2.14 that's been discussed. If it
wasn't at that it would be, you know, over $2,000 would be the taxes. So, they'd
really jump up. They, they, they-CHAIR HOKAMA: And you took off your $100,000 exemption?
MS. deNAIE: Yeah, yeah. And I really want to support the affordable rental concept giving
people incentive to have affordable rentals. I mean, people would do affordable
rentals if they knew that there was some support for them. A lot of people in our
neighborhood, they complain that they, they're trying to keep their rentals affordable,
but it's hard with everything going back and forth.
And keep in mind, we get no County services in our neighborhood. No water, no
sewers, no nothing. So, you know, we maintain our own road. We're, you know,
we're paying the same as everybody else so I'm not saying we need a special
dispensation, but something needs to give and thank you for your concern.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Lucienne, just to follow through on that. Did
you figure, cause I don't know what your assessment is and what your exemptions
are.
MS. deNAIE: Our assessment is over a million dollars. It went up from $440,000 last year
and it's, it's risen gradually over the years. I've paid taxes on this property for 21
years. My, my taxes used to be $239 a year and, you know, this is ag land. And,
and the other thing is we filed an ag plan for our land, but because we've never like
gotten the official exemption and everything, no one told us, oh, now you have to go
to the tax office. So we're not considered even ag land, you know, so.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're not taxed?
MS. deNAIE: No, we're not taxed as ag land. We're not taxed as, as dedicated ag land
even though we have no desire to do anything else on our land.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So did you run the assessment taking in consideration
the exemptions at the $250, uh, $2.50 rate?
MS. deNAIE: Yes, first I did it $2.50 and then 214, uh, $2.14.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so the rate you gave us from 1,100 to 1,800
was at $2.14 or 2.50?
MS. deNAIE: The, the rate at 2.14 would be $1,800 and, excuse me, I've got my figures
here. Yeah, would be 1,800 and, and uh-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's up from 1,100 last year?
MS, deNAIE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then did you run it at 2.50 also?
MS. deNAIE: Two fifty is 2,200 and something. Yeah, yeah. So, it's like, it's a grim
prospect. Just put it that way.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Well, I mean, that's a dif--big difference, that's.
MS. deNAIE: And I, I want to be honest. We do, we do qualify because we're moderate
income people. We do qualify for some circuit breaker assistance. But some of our
neighbors don't because both of them work and so forth and so on. So, and, and
there are people who don't because, you know, the family is in, in someone else's
name and they're living on it, you know, it's a family situation, a hui. There are many
reasons why a circuit breaker is good, but not perfect. So, we, you know, we really
need to look at the assessment base. If people are committed to stay on their land,
my feeling is don't tax them out of existence, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming, Lucienne.
MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, that concludes the testimony of, of individuals
who have submitted testimony forms.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Chair will ask one last time this morning, is there
anyone else wishing to provide testimony on the real property tax rates for the
July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007 Fiscal Year? Seeing none coming forward, Members,
with no objections, the Chair will close testimony for today's meeting.
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MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so ordered. Members, it is at this meeting that we do consider
adoption of the attached resolution that is in the back of your Notice of Public Hearing
and Intent to Fix Real Property Taxes Rates.
Mr. Kane.
The following proposed resolution was presented at this time.

RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION
NO. 06-43
ADOPTING THE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES
FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2006
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
MOVE TO ADOPT THE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2006 ON THE
RESOLUTION ATTACHED TO THIS MORNING'S AGENDA.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Carroll to adopt
the resolution regarding the real property tax rates for the various land classifications.
We have A) Improved Residential, B) Apartment, C) Commercial, D) Industrial,
E) Agriculture, F) Conservation, G) Hotel & Resort, H) Unimproved Residential,
I) Homeowner, and finally J) Time Share.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I yield the floor, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Anderson.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2006
Page 21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Kane.
I'D LIKE TO MOVE TO AMEND THE RESOLUTION TO CHANGE
THE RATE IN THE HOMEOWNER CATEGORY FROM 2.50 TO
2.14 AND TO CHANGE THE RATE IN THE HOTEL AND RESORT
CATEG--CATEGORY FROM $8.20 TO $8.60.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, one second, Members. Okay, we do have a motion to amend by
Ms. Anderson, seconded by Ms. Johnson to one, decrease Homeowners rate,
Members, from $2.50 to $2.14, and second to increase Hotel and Resort from $8.20
to $8.60, six, zero cents.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Members will note that this is
the same motion I made during the Budget Committee. I did pass out information at
that time regarding this and we did have some discussion and maybe it took
everyone by su--by surprise, I'm going to give it another shot today. Because of that,
I just feel that we need to give our homeowners as much relief as we possibly can.
We just heard from a testifier that her assessment has gone up so much that even at
$2.14, she's still going to suffer quite a large increase, almost double increase in
what her tax bill is going to be.
So because we have an industry on this island who enjoys, specifically now, they're
enjoying windfall profits. They have the highest room rates in the state. They have
the highest occupancy rates in the state. They are supported by a quite viable
marketing organization that, that County taxpayers also support to the tune of three
and a half million dollars. I just feel that we need to shift the burden. The burden
should be put on those property owners who are realizing large profits from their
properties.
Homeowners, unless they're in the speculative market, they're not realizing large
profits from their homes, Mr. Chair. This is, this is an investment for life for most of
them, and I just think we need to, to somehow reduce the burden of the escalating
tax assessment, property assessment that is going on in Maui County due to
speculative real estate investment and not due to the homeowners themselves.
They're the ones that are being punished.
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And I would like to mention that in the past when the hotel industry has suffered a
downturn because of some kind of economic problem on the mainland, the County
has responded.
From 1994 to 1998, there were no increases in assessed valuation for the hotel
industry, for that very reason. So I think what's good for the goose is good for the
gander. And the people who are suffering now are people who have to pay high tax
bills for property that they've maybe owned for generations. So I'm, I'm bringing this
again forward in hopes that Members would reconsider and shift some of this burden.
By the way, the resolution has a ten cent reduction in Hotel and Resort right now,
from $8.30 to $8.20. So my proposal is really only a thirty cent increase to the hotel
resort properties. And again, I would like to reiterate that we have the lowest rate for
hotels in the state. The hotel rate for Oahu is $11.37. Hotel rate on the Big Island is
$9.85. Kauai, of course, is still low because they're still recovering from Iniki, But
their hotel rate is $7.95, while their homeowner is $4.00, $4.00 for the land, Mr. Chair,
$4.30 for the building. So I don't think that this, you know, is a shocking increase in
any way. I don't think that, I mean, we're still below what Oahu charges and their
hotel room rates are lower than ours, Mr. Chairman.
And as Members will recall, I did pass out a comparative analysis that we did for
various Marriott Resorts across the state. And Maui is the lowest in assessed
valuation increases over the last two years as well as the lowest in the tax rate. So I
just, I think this is the fair thing to do and given the fact that we were not able to
discuss any real tax reform during this budget session, I would hope that we would,
you know, take a step, another step in the direction towards protecting our
homeowners. And I see this as a viable way of doing it. It doesn't change the
amount of property tax revenues that the County would enjoy, so therefore, it doesn't
make any changes to the budget that we've worked so hard on over these last six
weeks. It just shifts the burden a little bit by thirty cents to the hotel resort properties.
And I would ask Members for their support.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion, Members?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. Over these last few days, I did a little bit
of research and I did ask real property whether there were any appeals in the hotel
category. There are five different properties that are appealing out of roughly 30
properties. The total value if those appeals are upheld in the Hotel classification
would be $742,239. They range, you know, in the type of hotel facility that, that it is,
but I basically look at that as something that could be a worse case scenario. One of
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the other things that I did was, I paid particular attention to what is happening with
our visitor industry accommodations and the hotel industry.
And in The Maui News reported on May 2, the hotels at Maui's three destination
resorts took in almost $237 million in the first three months of the year. The upscale
resorts are Wailea, Kaanapali and Kapalua. Wailea resorts were the most
expensive, with an average daily room rate of $396.46. The average daily rate at,
and this would be I believe at Kaanapali/Kapalua, was $236.88. The occupancy rate
was 84.3 percent which is again very high. But Wailea was in a class by itself and it
had revenues per available room of $307.69.
So compared to the year before, posted rates were up $33 at Kaanapali and Kapalua
and almost $40 at Wailea. One of the comments made in this article is that higher
prices would be expected to dampen business, but with demand so high, operators
were unrestrained in posting price hikes.
Quoting from another article on May 10 and the heading of that article is "Isle hotel
figures the highest in the nation". Hawaii's hotel occupancy rate of 83.2 percent was
the highest in the nation during the first quarter. Maui's occupancy, and although it
dropped just by 0.4 percentage points to 83.1 percent, reported the highest market
annual or available daily room rate at $244.59.
The reason I'm giving these figures is because while they're enjoying both high
occupancy and high profitability, which is helping to bring people to our shores, there
are some of these same hotels that are also appealing their real property
assessment. Now if you look at on a percentage basis, only five out of thirty hotels,
that's not a majority of hotels that are appealing. Therefore, the majority of hotels, I
gather, are agreeing that their assessment is something that they can live with and
something that's appropriate. What I believe is that, at this point in time, they are
enjoying both high occupancy and high revenues.
Many of them are also experiencing some changes. Some of them are converting to
time shares. So they are also at that same time cutting workforce and some of those
same individuals who are already unemployed at one of our largest hotels, Kapalua
Bay Hotel, while they're employed by the Marriott Corporation, it has a ripple effect.
The individuals who are impacted that, by that may not be homeowners. Some of
them may be homeowners, but again, I believe that the appropriate place to put the
greatest amount of relief is by placing it with those individuals who I think are really,
really suffering the greatest. And those would be the individuals, not only in the
Homeowner category, but also many of those individuals that rent which are in
properties classified as Improved Residential.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2006
Page 24

support Ms. Anderson's concept. I believe that it's appropriate for us to look at relief
where we can give it. I also feel that, at this point in time, we really need to look at
the other side of the coin which is, if these appeals are upheld, we're looking at

$742,239 less in revenue.
Therefore, if we slightly increase the rate, it will help bolster up any kind of financial
bottom line that we're looking at. And that financial bottom line, Mr. Chair, I think, is
really what we have to focus on. I think that it's important, at least from my
perspective, to try to find a balance, to strike a balance and I believe that her
proposal is worthy of support and I will be supporting it. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion on the motion to amend, Members? If
not, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON AND JOHNSON.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no".
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS KANE, MATEO, MOLINA,
PONTANILLA, TAVARES, VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND
CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair rules two "ayes", seven "noes". Motion is defeated. We are back
to the main motion.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, no further discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Further discussion on the main motion before you?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
MR. CHAIR, I WOULD LIKE TO MAKE THE SAME MOTION THAT
I MADE DURING THE HEARING BEFORE THE COMMITTEE
AND THAT WOULD BE TO CHANGE THE TAX RATE FOR
HOTELS, TO KEEP IT AT ITS CURRENT LEVEL WHICH WOULD
BE $8.30 AND CHANGE THE HOMEOWNER RATE TO $2.24.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: One second, Members. Members, you have a motion, Chair is
accepting a motion to amend to decrease the Homeowners rate to $2.24 and
maintaining the Hotel and Resort rate at three, $8.30, three, zero.

Okay, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I've made the same arguments basically
for Councilmember Anderson's proposal and that has not changed. I feel that
because the Time Share rate has remained at the same level and also because of
the fact that the rates for hotels have not changed in proportion to the increase that
Homeowners and Improved Residential and other categories have changed over the
same period of time, I feel that it's fair for them to at least remain at the same rate,
thereby giving additional relief to the homeowners.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion on the motion to amend?
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, basically this just takes it from a thirty cent
shift to a ten cent shift from the homeowner, homeowners to the hotel resort, and as I
said, takes it back to what it should, to what it was last year. So, I, I see no reason to
give the hotels any relief whatsoever in, in a banner year for them when they're
making windfall profits.
So I think it's the intention of this Council to protect our renters, our homeowners, our
working class people of Maui and this is just another small way to do that. So I'm
fully in support of Ms. Johnson's motion and I would hope Members would see the
logic in doing this. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion on the motion to amend?

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I can support
this amendment at this time, Mr. Chair. I believe this is a, you know, I don't believe it
will impact the hotel industry in a negative way, just basically keeps their rate flat. As
it's been stated earlier, they are having a banner year and it just keeps things
constant with that of the time share. We haven't tampered with their rates, so I see
no need to tamper with the hotel rate and I believe any type of relief will be welcomed
by our homeowners. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I believe the last time
Member Johnson made this recommendation, I think I should have considered it fully
a lot better then. I'm not going to let the opportunity be missed now. I will be
supporting Member Johnson's recommendation. There is virtually no impact to the
hotel industry because we were, what we're doing is keeping them at the, at the
existing level and still being able to provide the homeowner with continued relief.
In essence for me, Chairman, the rate itself is really not the issue for me, it's the
runaway assessment that is. And until we got the guts to do something about
addressing the runaway assessment, then these rates is just part of the, the problem
so we're going to have to continuously deal with. This, in fact, Chairman, is that first
step. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think that all of us can
certainly agree in principle to what was proposed today, what's on the floor now, what
was on the floor earlier and even in the committee. I think that what, you know, my
hesitation about supporting this is, is the lateness of the request. Even at committee,
came in late and I guess trying not to have a knee jerk reaction to what's going on
here with assessments.
I would like to have a lot more discussion about this because we're still are basing
this on rates or some of the proposals were based on rates and you can't look just at
rates. Just as we not looking at rates when it comes to the homeowners, the
assessments are what's driving us to look at the rates because that's what we do
have control over. You know, I appreciate that we're trying to give relief to the
homeowners and to the renters and I don't know if the renters are going to actually
come out okay with this, even if it passes.
I would, at this point, 1 would support leaving, I would support the res--the
amendment that's on the floor now because I think it doesn't, it doesn't change the
rate for the hotels. However, the assessments have been increasing quite
substantially over the years. And every year, by the way, there are challenges to the
assessments for hotels, not, not that this year is, is a, an unusual-CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me, Ms. Tavares. Can you please turn that phone off? The
Chair will not tolerate any further disruptions in this meeting.
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Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Chair. The, the challenges to the
assessments occur every year by certain hotels and that's just their standard
operating procedure is that they'll challenge the assessment as long as it goes up, it
gets challenged. So I don't think this is an unusual year that, that the hotels that
have challenged, are challenging. So I think some of that information about the
history of what's happened with the hotels, the fact that, you know, we're in a period
of prosperity for the hotels. I think that's great for all of us and we do see a return on
this because of the TAT dollars that come back to, to Maui.
I've heard of a very high end resort on Oahu that has a 38 percent occupancy and is
running a 38 — 40 percent occupancy for a while. What would that kind of occupancy
do to, to Maui, if all of our hotels dropped from 80 percent to 40 percent? And to talk
about ripple effect, we've got a huge ripple effect in, throughout our entire economy.
And judging from the e-mails and phone messages and letters that I've been getting
about our actions with the Maui Visitors Bureau, people in the community do not
understand very clearly what the impact is, if our hotel industry or our tourist industry
goes downwards. And we're not doing a good job by communicating that to the
public. And they are not understanding why we vote the way we vote. And yet we,
we need to take that time to explain it, or somebody needs to explain what exactly
does it mean? Why do we need a healthy visitor industry? Why do we need healthy
hotel rates and healthy occu--occupancy rates? Because that affects every single
one of us on this island.
There's no one exempt from what happens with that tourist industry. That's why it's
called an economic engine. So while it may not be a direct impact that you can just
see by numbers, the impact does filter all the way throughout our whole society. So,
I know it's a long story or long, long statement about this particular thing, but I think I
can live, 1 can certainly live with leaving the hotel rate the same as it is right now, the
$8.30. So, Mr. Chair, I will be supporting the amendment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Further discussion on the motion to amend?
Mr. Pontanilla, you wanted the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, I, too, will be supporting the
amendment. I think it's a good amendment. It will provide more relief for our
homeowners and I think our concentration this whole budget in regards to property
tax was the homeowners. And for me, if it's going to help them out more, then I'll
support the motion. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Further discussion?
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. During the committee discussion, I
believe I was one of the Members that supported this on the floor and I will support it
today, it will be with reservations. And the reason being, has anybody bothered to do
an analysis of the hotels who don't enjoy the high occupancies on your island,
Mr. Chairman. On Lanai, the two hotels, which are the primary drivers of that
economy, as you know, are they enjoying the 80 and 90 percent occupancies? Can
anybody say?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it is, they are not.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can the makers of the motion and the supporters of the motion
tell us today that they have what kind of occupancies? Has that analysis been done?
I don't think so and I don't hear anybody saying it, other than yourself, Mr. Chair.
How about Molokai? How about that area? Are they enjoying 80 and 90 percent
occupancy rates?
How about Hotel Nana?
And when we talk about additional relief for the renter, this amendment is being given
additional adjustment to homeowners that we already gave a dollar decrease in rate
and a 100,000 increase in homeowner exemption. Although the Improved
Residential and Apartment classification is a key component of our community, this
amendment does not address the renter. So any discussion in this amendment that
discusses relief for a renter is not relevant because it's not occurring in this
amendment. The point, Mr. Chair, that I'm trying to make, is that these are the kind
of things that we need to have the full discussion because we can't just knee jerk,
because it's very complex and it involves a lot of impacts.
You, yourself, Mr. Chair, and I completely agree with you, when you squeeze a
balloon and you provide relief on one side from the pressure of the air pushing out, it
makes it harder on the other side of the balloon. And I can tell you, it's going to occur
here, too, the unintended consequences of this action. When we talk about giving
relief to people, if you look at the structure, it's already showing the relief and the
policies that we're giving, $2.50 for a homeowner, $8.00 and some odd cents for a
hotel.
By the way, the primary economic engine of the County therefore, it's something that
we need to take care of and we do. But we also charge them the majority of the
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rates or the, the monies that comes into this County. So there is a balance, if you
will, that's there.
The reservation on this vote, Mr. Chair, is that keeping it flat, keeping the hotel's rates
flat--and the reservation comes into the homeowner getting additional help without
providing additional help for the, whether it's Improved Residential or the Apartment.
You know, we'll have time again, I think, at first reading to have another consideration
of this. But I ask the Members to think about it.
Right now, the homeowner at 2.50 per 1,000 and $100,000 increase for a total of
$300,000 gives anybody, anybody who has a value combined with their land and
their assessment of $894,000 equal to or better than the proposal that came down on
March 15 from the Administration. So anybody who has a valued property of
$893,000 or less, which is the vast majority of the homeowners in this County, we will
be getting additional relief from the original proposal and a great relief from the initial
rate of $3.50 with the 200,000.
So what we have existing without the amendment provides, and I guess I was kind of
confused because on the one hand for somebody who received a $60 minimum rate
which is $5.00 a month for all the services that are provided in this County, as a
fantastic and a huge thing for some people, and then to be referred to it in almost the
same sentence as diddling, I'm a little confused by that. I don't understand which one
is it because it seems to be two opposite spectrums of a result of this type of action.
So I ask the Members, you know, if we're going to move forward with this and it looks
like it's going to move forward, Mr. Chair, on this amendment, that we better start
maybe doing a better job collectively of doing our, our deliberations. Being very
deliberate in what we're doing versus, you know, giving part of the story. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. As Mr. Kane has said, I can count, that's one
thing they taught us in school and I'm pretty sure that this motion is going to pass on
the floor. But I won't be supporting it. It sounds good and I'm sure a lot of people in
the public say, "wow, okay, this is good for us". I don't think it is. It might be good for
Lahaina mostly, it might be good for Kihei mostly.
But two islands in our County, I have serious concerns about, the islands of Lanai
and Molokai. And three quarters of this island, even though we have a small
population in Hana, is very dependent on one hotel. And no one, as far as I know,
has taken any consideration into those impacts.
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I've been around a long time and we have forever seen to where the rural areas
always suffer for the betterment of the rest of the County; Molokai, Lanai and East
Maui. Mr. Kane was right and the other Members that have mentioned this needs
more discussion. I think the original resolution that we have before us is the
appropriate resolution.
I would hope that the other Members would think twice about this. I don't think this is
the appropriate thing, this amendment, to do it this time. True tax relief is something,
true, that we have not done, but I think we have gone through extraordinary lengths
to reduce the tax rates for our homeowners. And who on earth thinks that most of us
aren't homeowners? It affects me as much as it affects everybody else.
I won't be supporting the amendment. I do hope that in the Budget Committee or the
appropriate committee that this discussion will take place later and we can see what
will come of it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, everyone had their opportunity.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and if I didn't make myself clear, while I said I would
love to give relief to the people that are in the rental area, I proposed the same
amendment that I did in committee. I realize that there is an opportunity for us
particularly in the Improved Residential to give that type of relief also. And as many
Members have said, sometimes even though we give relief in a particular area,
there's no guarantee that that savings would necessarily be passed on if it's given.
So that I do believe there's certainly discussion.
One of the things that I think I'll try and provide between now and, you know, the final
reading of the budget, is the information with regard to the actual increase in
assessment. It was my understanding and I will get the actual figures, but it was my
understanding that the principle amount of increase in real property assessment, as
far as hotel properties were concerned was basically in South and West Maui
because that is where activity goes on. I don't know if that same percentage of
increase was applied to Lanai, Molokai or Hana because generally, generally those
areas tend to be in a slightly different category. But I will try to provide that
information.
If those communities also, and just so that the individuals know, the properties that
appealed the real property assessment were Kapalua Bay Hotel, the Coconut Inn,
the Sheraton, the Westin Maui and the Maui Lu. If Hana, if Molokai properties and
possibly Lanai felt that their assessment wasn't fair in proportion to their economic
situation, they, they did not make a statement, you know, basically by appealing. It
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may be sometimes because there's a general feeling well what good is it going to do
to appeal.
Some of these, the savings, you know, the low savings I think or the difference in the
tax bill, the lowest one, was $4,724 and the highest one would have resulted in a
savings of $318,440. So that's the range of the monies that we would be talking
about by savings on appeal. So I can't speak to why those properties did not appeal.
But one of the things that makes it very difficult for do the analys--for doing the
analysis that people are urging us, and one of the challenges we've always had as a
County has been these figures are not segregated.
You know, many times the individual hotels, they don't always report their revenue
per available room. Some of the indications of occupancies, they're lumped. So it's
hard to separate that out particularly when the hotel, if it's part of a chain, if it's part of
a, of a larger property that exists here in the Hawaiian Islands, they don't separate
those. So that's the part of the equation, that unless there's individual reporting by
each one of the hotels, at least with regard to the price per available room and, you
know, the occupancy, those things are, are just something that we, we don't always
get.
So I would ask the Members, that in principle, to support this. I realize that I don't
have every figure. I also realize that I could have split it and given, you know, let's
say, a certain amount of relief to the homeowners or I could have put it all to
Improved Residential. I just felt that because the Homeowner category was where
we're getting the majority of complaints, at least through my office, that's where I
chose to put it at this point in time.
So, Mr. Chair, I thank you for allowing me to speak for a second time on this measure
and I will try to provide that information because I think that the issues raised are very
valid. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just one final short comment.
Basically, for people who may be listening, the proposed rate for Improved
Residential which would be those properties that renters would be renting from a
landlord has been reduced in this year's budget proposal from $5.86 to $5.20. So
there is already relief provided in, in that category. Of course, it all remains to be
seen what the assessed valuation will end up being, how that will end up affecting
the final property tax bill.
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But I think that this proposal by Ms. Johnson is, is just keeping the hotels at what
they're already paying, should be no real burden since every hotel on this island and I
don't know about Lanai, Mr. Chair, or Molokai, but our room rates have escalated.
And this is a small percentage of what they're realizing in increased room revenues.
So I think it's a very fair amendment and while it doesn't give as much relief to the
homeowners that I would hope, as I had hoped for, it's going in the right direction. So
I do wish that we had had more opportunity to discuss this during budget.
The whole issue of real property tax was not even brought up until we received our
first, our proposal from the Chair. And I had hoped that we would have had more
time to discuss it, but maybe next time around, maybe, maybe COMET's proposal
will be accepted by the time we get to the next budget and it, it would be a moot
point. But I think that this amendment is, is a small step in the right direction. So I'm
fully in support of it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Point of information, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: State your point.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And just, just so whoever's listening is
clear that Improved Residential and the Apartment went from $5.86 is now at $5.00,
not 5.20 and I, and I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry. I looked at the wrong one.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The, the, the Mayor's proposal is $5.00 and the $5.20 and the
committee dropped it down an additional twenty cents. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Further discussion?
The Chair will state for the record that he will be voting against the motion to amend.
While I would agree this is a popular thing, the Chair in this point and time does not
believe it to be the right thing. I think we need to continue to take our perspective
from a very broad spectrum, Members.
Let us not get confused between property taxes, transient accommodation taxes,
general excise taxes. They are different things from different purposes and sources
and to be spent in a variety of manners that does not have the limitation of real
property tax.
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While we are having the good times, I don't remember one property that asked for a
reduction after 9/11 when they got very little or no business. I tend, I think we tend to
forget those properties that stayed and maintained their full employment with no
businesses around, kept their employees employed. While there were certain
companies that definitely chose to cut back, this County was able to respond with
cash because of our sound fiscal policy and direction that we have started on and
have maintained.
Few good things last for that moment in time and it goes and leaves us. Do not get
swayed by feel good, popular things to adjust a direction that has been proven right
by the worst example, a catastrophic event. You know, for Lanai its very focus of a
little fishbowl. So I will tell you right now, I definitely don't believe this is the right
motion and I will not support it.
With no further discussion, all in favor of the motion please say "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON, KANE,
MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA, AND TAVARES.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no".
NOES: VICE-CHAIR CARROLL AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have seven "ayes", two "noes". The motion is adopted. We are
back to the main motion as amended. Further discussion?
Okay, the Chair will take a break cause I believe we'll be passing the budget before
we set rates for this motion that has, will be up for final decision so I will ask for a
recess so I can give you the status. Recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:12 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:36 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT EXCEPT
COUNCILMEMBERS CARROLL AND PONTANILLA, EXCUSED.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: This meeting is hereby reconvened. This committee, excuse me, the
Council shall stand in recess to 2:30.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:36 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 2:36 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Council's public hearing on the fifteenth of May 2006 shall return to
order. The current status before you, Members, there is a motion as amended before
the body. Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
IN LIGHT OF SOME INFORMATION THAT HAS NOT BEEN
PREVIOUS, PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED REGARDING THE
PREVIOUS VOTE OF THE AMENDMENT, I WOULD ASK THAT
YOU WOULD CONSIDER A MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION
OF THAT AMENDMENT,
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
SECOND.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have a motion of reconsideration by Mr. Kane, seconded by
Ms. Tavares,
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Very briefly, staff has done some
calculations and based on the previous amendment that was voted on, I think
because of information that would shed light on the dollar amounts and the
adjustments that will take place, I think it, it would warrant us continuing the
discussion on that amendment before we make our final determination. So I ask the
body's consideration to share that new information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, further discussion on the motion for reconsideration.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. After this morning, I went to the
office to look at some numbers and I was kind of disturbed in regards to the proposal
that was made earlier this morning. And at one time, we were looking at when I did
my calculations, I was looking at 2.3 million dollars in regards to an unbalanced
budget on the negative, not realizing there more calculations involved which I see the
number is like nine hundred, $900,000.
So I'm wondering in regards to what we did this morning, either we readjust the
property rates, we remove projects that were already in the proposed budget. Those
are two options or do we go ahead and move forward the budget that was presented
by our Chair Dain Kane. For me, Chair, at this time, I'm willing to move ahead with
the proposed budget that Mr. Kane had submitted as Budget and Finance Chair for
that committee. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Further discussion on the motion for reconsideration.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just for the clarification for
the public's sake, the motion on the floor to reconsider the vote is to be conducted
just amongst the Members who supported the amendment that is in question. Is that
correct, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR HOKAMA: All Members vote. Only Members who were voting on the majority side
of the previous vote can make the motion for reconsideration. So it is a proper
motion made by Mr. Kane and the Chair has accepted that. But all Members will vote
on the motion of reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ah, yes, because I was the maker of the original motion
that, you know, is triggering this, I'm in full support of it because I think that the
information which staff has gathered once we reached that point, it will be information
that we did not have the benefit of having this morning. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll be
supporting the motion to reconsider.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Further discussion on the motion to reconsider,
Members? Having none, all in favor please say "aye.
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON, KANE,
MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA, TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no".
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried. What you have before you, Members, is currently a
motion to adopt or recommend, excuse me, we are the Council, sitting as the
Council, my apologies, for the Council to adopt the attached resolution which sets the
rates for real property class categories.
Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. And so, I wanted to get a clarification that
we're re--reconsidering the previous amendment that was passed. And so, with the
reconsideration we're, we have that amendment back on the floor which is an
adjustment from 8.20 to 8.30 the Hotel rate, and an adjustment from 2.50 to 2.24 on
the Homeowner rate. Is that correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair. With that motion on the floor, I'd
just like to state some, some brief information for the Members. Based on what's on
the floor, if this motion passes, we would be, I'll use the term upside down. We will
be out of balance by $910,549 with the motion on the floor now.
So there's a number of things including a memo that we have received from our
Director of Council Services that would make adjustments in that way or another
option is to consider, is to move forward as Mr. Pontanilla has stated with the original
figures instead of adjusting up ten cents on one side and adjusting down either
twelve or thirteen cents on the other side.
I think the committee's work that has been, I think, duly considered and had ample
time to have a lot of discussion and we ended up where we ended up as a
committee, I think are fair numbers for us to consider at this time with, you know, with
all the discussion that was attached to that. I'll, I'll stand by that discussion and
accept it. Although I may not completely agree with the rationale that some of us
may come up with in the end, I think as a body, we collectively supported the
resolution that we have before us with the rates that are attached to it and I will
continue to support those rates at this time. And therefore, I will be voting no on the
amendment. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further discussion?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ah, yes.
BASED ON THE DOCUMENTATION THAT WE HAVE BEFORE
US, I MOVE TO AMEND THE AMENDMENT THAT I ORIGINALLY
PROPOSED AND THAT AMENDMENT WOULD BE TO LEAVE
THE HOTEL RATE AT $8.30, BUT IT WOULD BE TO AMEND ON
THE, LET'S SEE, HOMEOWNERS CLASSIFICATION TO $2.37.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
SECOND.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. My apologies, Ms. Johnson. I, the Chair has ruled that you do
have a proper motion to amend and that you are currently still maintaining the 8.30, is
my understanding, and that you are looking at what adjusted number now, please for
homeowners.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The adjustment would be in the Homeowner category
which would be a reduction from $2.50 to $2.37. And this is based on a
communication from Mr. Fukuoka. If you would like me, Mr. Chair, to withdraw my
original motion, I could also do that and just restate it to make things cleaner, but
basically I'm making that amendment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And your second was Ms. Anderson. Okay, thank you. Okay,
motion, Members, you do have a motion to amend. You have heard the proposed
rates. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Point of information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: State your point, please, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What would happen if this passes and, and it's impact with
the first reading of the bill, cause I thought that in the bill for first reading the rate is
set as proposed here. And is there sufficient notice and time for people to comment
regarding a change in the rates other than what's been posted?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your point. The Chair will respond to the floor in this
manner. One, the Council is obligated by law to restart and from scratch a complete
reposting of the tax rate procedure, which means we will again post a Notice of
Public Hearing by categories. Normally, we start with a range of rates from point A to
point Z and everything in between can be considered. Or the Chair upon legal and
financial counsel can plug in a specific rate depending upon the outcome of decisions
made today.
After the proper noticing, we will then do Step A which is the first part of the hearing
process. Then by law, we will recess and wait three additional weeks and conduct
the second half, which we are doing today for this rate tax proposal and more than
likely that will be in June. And by law, we have no later till June 20 to pass a revised
and approved property tax rate. But as all of you, the Members are aware, the
budget ordinance must be completed by end of May and sent to the Mayor's Office.
So, there's couple of scenarios going on. One, we may pass a budget with no tax
rate yet. We can move forward with what we have that came out of Budget and
Finance Committee. And two, we could pass a budget anticipating a proposed tax
rate that would be made and determined in June. I think all of us are concerned
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about whether or not procedurally there are conc--they, we want to eliminate any
potential concerns that whatever the Council does will not by default automatically
makes the Mayor's budget go into effect.
And all of the work that this Budget and Finance Committee has made through its
standing committee, will go down the tubes. And that we are, we expect legal
counsel from Corporation Office as well as Mr. Fukuoka and his office to give us the
best information and advice prior to that point in time.
So nonetheless, Members, Thursday the Council will meet for consideration on
passage on first reading, the budget ordinances and attachments that have come
from Mr. Kane's standing committee. And that's where we are at this point in time
with the situation of the amended main motion as it is currently being proposed to be
amended.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Some clarification. If we were to,
today we're being asked to adopt the rates as posted in the resolution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me answer this way. If the, if today, okay because of the motion to
amend that is currently before you, Members, should any revision to the rate as we
have published and have posted for today's meeting, and that's the far it will go. The
Council cannot move forward with any decision making on the resolution. We start
from scratch, we go all the way back to the initial posting for rates once more. Okay,
if we make changes this afternoon on this floor.
If there is no changes to what has been posted by the Clerk's Office, then you have
the opportunity to make a decision on the resolution today and it will follow suit
basically how Council has done throughout the years, many years. But again,
different times, different situations. So that's where we are, Ms. Anderson. It
depends the outcome of the votes to amend.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could I ask my question?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If we were to pass this resolution today with the
amended rates, what would prevent us from posting this resolution for second
reading tomorrow or the next day and then hearing it within the next six days after
that? What would prevent us from that?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: First, we, we will not be able to make a decision today on the resolution

if the rates are revised.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is our law. That is what is in the ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The, the law doesn't allow any amendments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It does. We just need to go once more from scratch and restart the
whole public hearing notification process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, well I'm not following that, Mr. Chairman, because
the first time we posted this tax rate hearing, we had a range, a very broad range.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and this one is very specific rates as, as adopted
by the committee. So this doesn't necessarily follow that first posting. It's different.
So are you saying if we make any amendments to this, we have to have two, two
more postings on this in order for it to pass?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is your Chair's understanding of the law.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I don't understand why we have to have two
postings with the very same rate when we haven't had two postings with the very
same rate up to today. The first posting was a broad range. This posting is specific.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel, are you able to give some comment regarding the
revision to the resolution that is before us this, this day?
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL TRACI FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, during the
break, I had an opportunity to go back and discuss this matter with my office. And
my understanding is that amendments to the resolution are not proper at this time.
Basically, the Council needs to either vote the motion up, I mean needs to either
approve or disapprove the reso as it is.
If the Council chooses to disapprove the reso, then the Council can consider new
rates. We would have to go through the same process. The way that the law reads
is there are two sections that talk about notices. And the third sec--section which
talks about further changes, talks about going through those, the first two steps
again. So that's why the two notices would be required again for any changes to the
reso. So Council would not be able adopt the reso today unless it's adopted as it
was posted.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you cite the law that says that we have to post the

rates twice?
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: It's Chapter 3.48.565.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is, is that the section that you're citing?
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: That's the section, the subsection is, the Subsection
C talks about further changes which is what's occurring now. We've gone through
Step A, Step B, and we're now at the third step about further changes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what I'm having a hard time understanding is if the
first posting on this resolution for property tax rates had a very broad range from like
$2.00 to $10.00, why is it that we can now have a second resolution with very specific
rates not repeating for a second reading the broad range?
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: Council could choose to have the, follow the same
steps in a second go around. You could have the first notice be a range and then the
second notice be specific rates. Or you could have both notice with the specific
rates. The law doesn't state, you know, exactly which way it has to be.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But what you're saying the law says is that as it's posted,
you cannot change it,
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Or you have to repost?
DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because of the, I guess, lack of information that I
personally was not aware of this requirement, because ordinarily what we would do, I
would agree with Ms. Anderson that when an action, I don't care what action it is
coming out of committee, basically, it should be at least disclosed, in my opinion, in
committee whatever we adopt or whatever comes out of committee is what we have
to go with. There will be no deviations because on occasion we have, you know,
whether it's financial, maybe this is more specific and that's why I'm not aware of it.
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But many times, through resolutions or through other actions taken by committee,
there's been no formal action taken on that item until it actually comes before us
which would be the official action today. So that's where I'm having the disconnect,
with this being separate and apart from other actions. Cause many times when we
have items that come out of committee, the official action may, you know, I mean it
may be different. Even the measure that's under consideration may be different from
what was posted as long as it comports with the subject matter, it's in the general
discussion. This is my understanding of giving due public notice. We had had this
discussion in committee. We even had the same identical motions in committee.
And the whole purpose of Sunshine Law and posting is to really afford an opportunity
for the public to comment on that. Albeit, we had these discussions in the wee hours
of the morning, I think the public has been aware of the give and take of the
discussion that went in or went on within the committee. So that's where I have, I
guess my difficulty in saying, if you have to repast, the general understanding that I
have of the legal requirement or the requirement for purposes of reposting is to give
an opportunity to comment. This is nothing that was not discussed in committee.
Other subjects have come up which are very similar. So that's why I have difficulty
rationalizing why this would be different. So, you know, I, I'm perfectly willing, you
know, to withdraw the motion if there is no possible way that we can have this kind of
a discussion because it's a moot point, because I respect the work of the committee.
We put in many long hours and in no way do I mean to disrespect that. But also
when we had these initial discussions, exactly as Councilmember Anderson had
spoken about, many times, it's at very late hours. I am trying to do what I think is
something that will give additional relief. I don't believe that this is different from
other scenarios.
I, I'm not an attorney, therefore, I cannot, you know, address the issues that you're
addressing. But basically, that's my understanding and that's why I chose to make
the motion. And I can't speak for Councilmember Anderson, but I'm sure that that's
why she chose to make her motion because now where you've had a little bit of a
break and an opportunity to rethink things, there still needed to be some fine tuning.
And that was my whole goal and objective in doing this. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. We're back to the main motion. We had an addition, initial
motion to amend and now we are on the second motion to amend, Members.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would ask that the body consider a no
vote on the amendment to the amendment on the floor. And I would ask that the
body consider voting no on the amended amendment and bring it back to the main
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motion that was provided for at the beginning of this reconvened meeting. And not
for the sake of keeping it simple, but for the sake of the consideration of the
committee's work.
Subsection C of 3.48.565, which by the way, the notice is given on this public hearing
so, I mean, the subsection was there for the public to know specifically why we're
doing what we're doing. So it's not like we didn't have information. Everybody who is
reading and paying attention to that has that information in front of them. But it's all
there. Subsection C is very clear. If we determine that it requires further increase or
decrease, which is where we're at today. Then we start all over. We go back
through processes A and B which specifies all that information.
And I guess the question comes down to, Mr. Chair, your comments regarding how it
impacts the May 31 deadline that the Charter has and it seems like Charter trumps
this and I don't know if there's relevancy to that. And I don't, and I guess that's the
question we'll deal with if the motions to amend the amendment passes and then the
amended amendment passes. Then I think that's, we need to understand that.
So I ask the body to consider a no vote on the amendment and it's not out of
disrespect for the intent of the maker of the motions. But it is again to be consistent
with the committee's work.
As a side note, Mr. Chair, so for additional clarity, as your Chair of the Budget and
Finance Committee, it was your Chair's option to post a range during the first posting
because at that time this body had not yet completed its committee work regarding
the tax rates. In fact, we had rounds that we were going through and the posting of
the original public hearing notice was at a time when we did not complete our rate
discussion.
This, because we have specific rates now, reflects the, the recommendation of the
body to the full Council. And that's why it was brought out of the range and to the, to
the exactions that are here before us this afternoon. So I just wanted to provide that
as a reason why we did that, because then it provides opportunity, as Member
Johnson talked about in the spirit of the Sunshine Law, to provide the public to come
in and testify on the ranges that are available for rates to charge as property tax in
the various classifications. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Kane.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, if the body would permit, I would withdraw my motion
because at this point it appears with Corporation Counsel having given their opinion
that she gave, and because with the second posting not being in a range which
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would have permitted us had, you know, we had that opportunity, it would have
permitted us to have this, you know, discussion today and actually not invalidated the
action that was at least attempted to try to give additional tax relief. I would ask
permission of the body to withdraw both my amendments from consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the Chair will accept that withdrawal of the motion to amend,
Members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll withdraw my second, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: For both amendments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Okay, Members. Okay, Members, I know you have
a question in your mind. The Chair understanding of what Ms. Johnson just put
forward to your Chairman is her withdrawal of her motions to amend. Okay, she
made two. The first amendment and the second which was to try and reach a, I
guess, a revenue neutral position. Okay, upon her request to the Chair, the Chair is
accepting both amendments to be withdrawn. Okay and I appreciate Ms. Anderson's
support for that.
The rules state that just the maker of the motion needs to withdraw the motion and
the Chair has accepted, your Chair has accepted that. So thereby, Members, what is
now before you is just a main motion to accept and adopt the resolution as attached
on today's Notice of Public Hearing that has set for Land and Building the various
real property tax rates for our ten categories.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Point of information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please state your point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I believe the first amendment that Ms. Johnson made,
we all voted on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then we took a reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And a reconsideration we voted to reconsider.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then she made another amendment in that vote of
reconsideration. So I would like clarification that we don't need, I mean,
reconsideration of, does that mean the vote is invalidated entirely?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, do you have any questions for your Chair regarding the
current status of what is before you so that you, we are, you know, you are very
comfortable to the decision the Chair will be requesting of you? There is just a main
motion before you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair. speak to the main motion which
is to adopt the resolution that states the specific per thousand rate in each of the
categories. I can say this is my tenth year in the budget and I do not believe we have
ever changed the rates that the committee put out in the, in those ten years and we
have changed some rates.
But its, the discussions are done in committee and, and because the real property tax
rates are a different animal than the rest of the budget ordinance, there is a
procedure outlined as our Corporation Counsel has reviewed for us for real property
tax rates. Other rates or other issues or items or appropriations in the budget can be
amended even at second reading without going back to square one because those
aren't that special. This happens to be a highly protected process, the real property
tax rates.
So, you know, I would, I would support the, the motion on the floor supporting what
was the original presentation here because we did discuss this in our Budget
Committee. And the committee voted on some amendments and finally voted out
this particular rate schedule. So I think also that, you know, we all want to help and
try to help the rate taxpayer.
But we do need to, or our homeowners, we do need to take what's called due
diligence and too often everybody says that word but we don't really define it too
much. But what it means is you have to look at all the impacts, intended and
unintended, and that takes some time and some research. And it's not going to be
accomplished in the next week or two. It's something that has to be looked at in
great detail.
So I don't feel, you know, given that as much as we wanted to jump in here and help
some more, I don't believe that we are going to do good in the long run if we don't
take that time to really examine this whole tax structure and rate structure and
assessment procedures.
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So I think many of us that voted for the amendment in the first place were trying to
help basically. And I believe that what's presented here today is a trying to help kind
of proposal. And there is, there is some considerable help and I think, as Members
have said before, we're going in the right direction. We just need to keep looking at it
but look at it with the greatest amount of scrutiny so that we don't have unintended
consequences in the long run. So with that, Mr. Chair, I will support the motion on
the floor. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Further.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be supporting the
motion on the floor as well and, I guess, all of us, we, in our hearts, we want to try
and provide maximum relief for our homeowners. And already we have a proposal
that is a step in the right direction.
But in light of the circumstances explained to us from Corporation Counsel and staff,
and with this being somewhat time sensitive, it would be regrettable for me to
continue this process through the month of June where we, many of us in our
committees, we've got a lot of pressing issues that this community needs to have a
response for. And no disrespect to the budget process, but there's other matters in
this community that need to be addressed. So I would hate to see our committee
time be cut into with the continued discussion of this.
So again, I appreciate the, Member Johnson who made these initial proposals. It just
seems like because of what's in our Charter, our hands are tied with considering this
type of amendment. So I guess it's a case of leave alone, let be, you know. We just
should just move on and, and press on with other issues in our community, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Further discussion, Members?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I want to thank the Members for their support of at
least trying to revisit the issue. I think what I always have a problem with is that we
spend so much time going through the budget deliberations. We spend hours and
hours and we're tired and we're talking about these things in the wee hours of the
morning. So many times what ends up happening is when we're taking actions,
sometimes that information or at least the, what I think the critical components are
not fully understood when these actions are taken in committee.
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If I had been advised, okay, this is whatever comes out of committee, it cannot be
altered, it cannot be changed, if that simple statement had been made, perhaps I
would have been a little bit more passionate. I would have been a little bit better in
my understanding of what was going to come forward.
Because we have an open process and many times what comes out of committee is
not always what ends up being adopted on the floor of the Council, it, it leaves the
public, it leaves people like myself, I guess, a little bit frustrated at times because the
process that we go through should support our ability to respond to the members of
the public. It re--it should respond to their needs.
Sometimes people don't even watch the Council meetings until much later because
they're not as foolish as we are staying up till one or two in the morning. So what it
does though is everything condenses down to a mad rush to adopt something just to
get something out and passed to committee.
Where I think organizations like COMET really kind of bring us back, you know, call
us short if you will, is that they're actually asking as members of the public, focus on
these components because whatever comes out of the budget has to tie in. But it
also has to be reflective of what the reality is that many of the individuals in our
Homeowner classification, as well as the renters in our community are faced with,
which is do I put food on my table, do I put gas in my car or do I pay my rent, or do I
move onto the harbor apron? So sometimes those are the harsh realities that we
face. So every action we take it has sometimes an unintended consequence.
Because I did not and because it was not fully perhaps, given the lateness of the
hour, it wasn't fully aware or I was not fully aware of this action being final, there was
no other action that could be taken somehow. I thought that, at this point in this
juncture, that we would be able to do that. We're not able to do that.
Perhaps, what might be helpful is, if in the future to allow things like this to take place,
maybe we should just continually post a range. And then that way, we won't be
violating any component of the Sunshine Law and we won't be deviating. But we will
still give an opportunity for the public to respond to what took place in committee
which was at many times very late hours.
So, Mr. Chair, I, I will support the work of the committee. I respect that a vote was
taken in committee. I will not change my vote, but let it be known that I would look
towards at least a better way that we could respond to the requests that we're
receiving from constituents about further relief. So I'm hoping that at that point in
time we can do that. So it's no disrespect to any of the work done in committee. It's
just that is the way it is and it's very difficult sometimes to just do all that we have to
do and fully comprehend what is going to come out of that.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 26, 2006
Page 47

So I will be supporting these classifications. Again, I'm not happy with some of the
areas because I think we could have done a little bit better job, but I did make my
motion in committee and it was legitimately voted down. So I, I at least had an
opportunity. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I, I will be supporting the
resolution on the floor, Chairman. But I, I did want to mention that the seven to,
seven to two vote that Ms. Johnson's amendment actually garnered, sends a real
strong message to all the Members of this Council that we need to revisit. We need
to take a look at the classifications and we need to have the discussion on where we
think the classification figures, the rate should be at. And I think it should be an issue
that we need to address as soon as possible so at the next junction, at the next
considerations, we're ready and prepared to come out with a rate, I guess, rate sheet
that will not deal with amendments so we can just continue to move, to move on with,
with the process itself.
But, I thank Member Johnson for providing us, you know, another means, another
vehicle that we can, we can look at and just trying to look at how we continue to
provide relief to our community. The whole basis of this exercise we went through
was the commitment of this Council to provide the people of, of our county as much
relief as we possibly can. And this clearly demonstrates, you know, the need from all
of us. It is not the political thing, it is not the easy thing, it is the right thing for us to
put our people first. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Further discussion?
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I, too, will support this resolution.
Unfortunately, we have no opportunity to make any adjustments and, you know, of
the, geez, count it up, I bet you it's hundreds of hours we spent on the budget from
day one going out to the community and all the time we spent in these chambers.
I bet you we spent not more than an hour discussing these property rates. They
came out as part of our Chair's proposal which I appreciate, but and the very first day
they came out nobody wanted to discuss it at that point. We wanted to move on to
determine what our expenditures were.
Frankly, there was no time to discuss it because there was no time to really review
the rates. You know, it's a complex issue. You have to sit down with a calculator
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and figure it out. So I, I think that studying our real property tax rate is probably the
most important job this Council has in the budget process and I would hope in the
future we could find a way to adjust the process and maybe as Member Mateo is
suggesting, it needs to be done before we go into budget. At least find a way to
discuss it in depth so that we can look at the options. I think there's a lot of options
out there, Mr. Chair, and maybe the opportunity that we had to discuss the options is
going to be taken away from us as a Council.
If COMET's petition goes to the voters, we may lose our, our power to discuss those
options. So that was my attempt in trying to make a rate change and I appreciate
Member Johnson's also attempting to do the same thing. And, you know, it is what it
is, as they say. So I will be supporting the resolution. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, further discussion on the motion before you? If
not, the Chair is happy to allow Mr. Kane his, the final comments before we vote.
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate that. Thank you very much. I
guess it's, it's difficult but I'll do my best to again reiterate that the process that we
have by Charter in receiving a proposal from the Executive Branch on March 15. Any
discussion before that makes it difficult for us to anticipate what to expect from the
Executive Branch and therefore makes a very difficult challenge for us to provide a
starting point.
And so the process through the Charter has set up our, you know, has, has been set
up in such a way that we take time, as much time as the committee is comfortable
with, to deal with a budget for a fiscal year. We received that on March 15. We went
to the community. Your Chair of the Committee provided a starting point as an
alternative based on the information we were able to extract from our community.
And I believe your Chair, with the support of its staff, made every effort to provide as
much opportunity as possible to engage the Committee in their opportunity to discuss
any aspect as long as it was in an orderly manner of the proposal, For the record, we
spent exactly two hours after midnight on one night. We basically spent a lot of our
time in normal hours in this chamber with exception to the final week and not
including going out to the community to get information from them. But actual
deliberation we spent, oh, I think three maybe four days or a day more, five days over
and above our normal working day of 9:00 to 4:30.
At the choice of the body, it was always put back to the body and I want to thank
Member Tavares for recognizing that in the late hours of our final day because we
made every effort to make sure that this body and every member in this body,
collectively as the Budget and Finance Committee, had the opportunity to pose their,
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their recommendations, have a discussion and vote on them. So I just wanted to
reiterate that, Mr. Chair, because it's, it's difficult when those efforts are compromised
by remarks that don't reflect what happened.
And again for the public's information, we have before us now a resolution that
specifically reflects the committee's work regarding tax rates, nothing more, nothing
less. And it's different from the originally proposed or posted resolution that provided
a range because the intent as it has been for years, decades to engage the public so
they know that there's a range of rates that we can discuss and then they can give us
their thoughts and their feelings regarding rate structure.
So as your Chair of the Committee, I'm very comfortable with the process. Yes, it's
difficult for many of us. But the more you make an attempt to understand it, the
easier it becomes. It's when you don't understand what process you need to follow is
what creates challenges, frustrations and the, the compellingness or feeling
compelled to have to change something because you don't understand it.
So I just ask the Members although we're at the tail end of our budget, for those of us
who will be here in future years, I can assure you that the better you make the
attempt at understanding the processes that we have before us, the easier it will
become to engage your constituency, your citizenry, and understanding how to move
forward and help them. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, you have a motion before you to adopt by
resolution the real property tax rates for the County of Maui effective July 1, 2006. All
in favor of the motion please say "aye."
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS ANDERSON, JOHNSON, KANE,
MATEO, MOLINA, PONTANILLA, TAVARES,
VICE-CHAIR CARROLL, AND CHAIR HOKAMA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed, say "no".
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion is carried unanimously. Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record that is RESOLUTION NO. 06-43.
I'd also like to state for the record that with respect to the public testimony that was
offered this morning, we have received two pieces of written testimony.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, with no objections, the Council shall accept those
written testimonies as provided for today's meeting.
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MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, so ordered.
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART OF
THE RECORD OF THIS PUBLIC HEARING:
1.
2.

American Resort Development Association; and
Tony Fisher, COMET.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Any announcements? We do have a Special Council Meeting,
Members, this Thursday for consideration of passage on first reading the Fiscal Year
2007 Budget. With no further announcements, this meeting is hereby adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT
The public hearing of APRIL 26, 2006, was adjourned by the Chair on MAY 15, 2006, at
3:26 p.m.
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